Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

DIRECTOR OF INSURANCE,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 99-0899 DI




)

YOVETTA J. WILSON,
)




)



Respondent.
)

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW


On March 31, 1999, the Director of Insurance filed a complaint seeking to discipline the bail bond agent license of Yovetta J. Wilson for having been convicted of a felony and obtaining her license by fraud.  We convened a hearing on the complaint on January 26, 2000.  Diane Garber represented the Director.  Though served with notice of the time and place of the hearing, Wilson made no appearance.  Our reporter filed the transcript that day.  

Findings of Fact

1. Wilson held bail bond agent License No. BB498681625, which expired on January 10, 2000.  

2. On October 11, 1990, the United States District Court for the Western District of Missouri found Wilson guilty, on her guilty plea, of conspiracy to transport, sell, or receive stolen property in violation of 18 U.S.C. 371.  The court imposed a sentence of four months’ 

imprisonment and three years of supervised release.  United States v. Wilson, No. 89-00223-15-CR-W-1.  

3. On December 2, 1996, Wilson filed a bail bond agent license application with the Director.  On the application, Wilson stated that she had never been convicted of a misdemeanor or felony.  In reliance on that representation, the Director issued her bail bond agent License No. BB498681625.  

Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the Director’s complaint against Wilson’s expired license under section 621.045, RSMo Supp. 1999,
 and section 374.755.1.  The Director has the burden of proving that Wilson has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm'n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  

A.


The Director cites section 374.755.1(2), which allows discipline for:

Having entered a plea of guilty or having been found guilty of a felony[.]

The conspiracy statute of which Wilson pled guilty and was convicted of violating – 18 U.S.C. section 371 – provides:

If two or more persons conspire either to commit any offense against the United States, or to defraud the United States, or any agency thereof in any manner or for any purpose, and one or more of such persons do any act to effect the object of the conspiracy, each shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than five years, or both. . . .

The five years’ imprisonment possible under 18 U.S.C. 371 generally makes it a felony under 

18 U.S.C. section 3559(a), which provides:


An offense that is not specifically classified by a letter grade in the section defining it, is classified if the maximum term of imprisonment authorized is – 

*   *   *

(4) less than ten years but five or more years, as a Class D felony[.]

However, 18 U.S.C. 371 further provides:

If, however, the offense, the commission of which is the object of the conspiracy, is a misdemeanor only, the punishment for such conspiracy shall not exceed the maximum punishment provided for such misdemeanor.

(Emphasis added.)  Therefore, Wilson was convicted of a felony unless the crime that she conspired to commit is a misdemeanor.  

The crime of transporting stolen property is set forth at 18 U.S.C. section 2314.  The crime of selling or receiving stolen property is set forth at 18 U.S.C. section  2315.  Neither offense is classified by a letter grade.  Under each of those statutes, the maximum term of imprisonment authorized is ten years.  Each of those crimes is therefore a felony because 18 USC section 3559(a) provides:


An offense that is not specifically classified by a letter grade in the section defining it, is classified if the maximum term of imprisonment authorized is – 

*   *   *

(3) less than twenty-five years but ten or more years, as a Class C felony [.]

Therefore, the misdemeanor exception in the conspiracy statute does not apply.  


We conclude that Wilson is subject to discipline under section 374.755.1(2) for having entered a plea of guilty and having been found guilty of a felony.  

B.


The Director cites section 374.755.1(3), which allows discipline for:

Use of fraud, deception, misrepresentation . . . in securing any license issued pursuant to sections 374.700 to 374.775[.]

Fraud is an intentional perversion of truth to induce another, in reliance on it, to part with some valuable thing belonging to him.  State ex rel. Williams v. Purl, 128 S.W. 196, 201 (Mo. 1910).  Misrepresentation is a falsehood or untruth made with the intent and purpose of deceit.  MERRIAM-WEBSTER'S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 744 (10th ed. 1993).  Deception is the act of causing someone to accept as true what is not true.  MERRIAM-WEBSTER'S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 298 (10th ed. 1993).  Thus, fraud always includes deception and misrepresentation.  Wilson’s application stated that she had no felony conviction, and we infer that the Director relied on that representation in issuing the license to Wilson.  

Therefore, we conclude that Wilson is subject to discipline under section 374.755.1(3) for fraud, deception, and misrepresentation.  

Summary


We conclude that Wilson is subject to discipline under section 374.755.1(2) for having entered a plea of guilty and having been found guilty of a felony, and under section 374.755.1(3) for fraud, deception, and misrepresentation.


SO ORDERED on March 14, 2000.



________________________________



WILLARD C. REINE



Commissioner

�Statutory references are to the 1994 Revised Statutes of Missouri, unless otherwise noted.
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